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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

MARSHALL DIVISION 

UNILOC USA, INC. and UNILOC 

LUXEMBOURG S.A., 

 

Plaintiffs, 

 

v. 

 

GOOGLE, INC., 

 

Defendant. 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

 

 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 2:17-cv-465 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

ORIGINAL COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

Plaintiffs, Uniloc USA, Inc. and Uniloc Luxembourg, S.A. (together “Uniloc”), as and for 

their original complaint against defendant, Google, Inc. (“Defendant”), allege as follows: 

THE PARTIES 

 

1. Uniloc USA, Inc. (“Uniloc USA”) is a Texas corporation having a principal place 

of business at Legacy Town Center I, Suite 380, 7160 Dallas Parkway, Plano Texas 75024. Uniloc 

also maintains a place of business at 102 N. College, Suite 603, Tyler, Texas 75702. 

2. Uniloc Luxembourg S.A. (“Uniloc Luxembourg”) is a Luxembourg public limited 

liability company having a principal place of business at 15, Rue Edward Steichen, 4th Floor, L- 

2540, Luxembourg (R.C.S. Luxembourg B159161). 

3. Uniloc Luxembourg owns several patents in the field of text/voice instant 

messaging. 

4. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a Delaware corporation having a 

principal place of business in Mountain View, California and offers its products, including those 

accused herein of infringement, to customers and/or potential customers located in Texas and in 

the judicial Eastern District of Texas. Among other things, Defendant engages in marketing 

Case 2:17-cv-00465   Document 1   Filed 06/01/17   Page 1 of 48 PageID #:  1



2 

 

 

activities that promote the use of the Google Hangouts app and its associated system. Defendant 

may be served with process through its registered agent: Corporation Service Company, 211 E. 7th 

Street Suite 620 Austin, TX 78701-3218. 

5. Upon information and belief, Defendant has multiple locations in Texas, 

including offices in Austin and Dallas, as shown below.  

 

Source: https://careers.google.com/locations/ 

6. Upon information and belief, via the Google Hangouts app and its associated 

system, Google allows individuals to communicate with one another, including communications 

between two or more residents in the Eastern District of Texas.   

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant maintains highly interactive and 

commercial websites, accessible to residents of Texas and the Eastern District of Texas, through 

which Defendant promotes its products and services, including the Google Hangouts app and 

services that infringe the patents-in-suit.  Defendant’s websites solicit users and do business 

directly with residents of the Eastern District of Texas to create a user account and a Gmail email 
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address; create an address book of contacts of friends, family, and business associates; participate 

in interactive messaging with other users; participate in interactive video conferencing with other 

users; and make voice calls using an interactive software dialer to other users as well as to non-

user phone numbers in the United States, Canada, and internationally.  Further, Defendant’s 

website also accepts payment from residents of the Eastern District of Texas (via 

payments.google.com) to make long distance and international calls.  

8. The following presents just some of the products and services provided to 

residents in the Eastern District of Texas. 

 

Case 2:17-cv-00465   Document 1   Filed 06/01/17   Page 3 of 48 PageID #:  3



4 

 

 

 

 

Case 2:17-cv-00465   Document 1   Filed 06/01/17   Page 4 of 48 PageID #:  4



5 

 

 

 

 

Case 2:17-cv-00465   Document 1   Filed 06/01/17   Page 5 of 48 PageID #:  5



6 

 

 

 

Source:  https://www.google.com/intl/en/about/products/  

 

Source: https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.google.android.apps.googlevoice   
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Source:  https://www.android.com/  

 

Source: https://fi.google.com/about/  

9. Upon information and belief, advertising is among Defendant’s primary 

businesses, and advertising is implemented in Defendant’s highly interactive search engine 

website by directly interacting with users in the Eastern District of Texas.  And as shown below, 

the overwhelming majority of Defendant’s revenues come from its proprietary advertising 

products and services, and most of that overwhelming majority of revenue comes from users’ 
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interactions with Defendant’s own highly interactive websites.   

 

Source: http://www.investopedia.com/articles/investing/020515/business-google.asp  

10. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s advertising products and services are 

implemented by means including Defendant’s AdSense and AdWords products, as well as through 

Defendant’s Advertising ID and User-ID features. For example, as shown below, Defendant’s 

search engine website interacts directly with users through the User-ID feature by associating one 

or more web browser sessions with a unique and persistent ID that is sent to Defendant’s Google 

Analytics servers. 

 

Source: https://support.google.com/analytics/answer/3123662  

11. Further, Defendant’s highly interactive search engine website also directly 

interacts with and tracks users in the Eastern District of Texas through Defendant’s Conversion 

Tracking feature.  Conversion Tracking tracks the actions of a user after the user clicks on an ad 

by Defendant storing a cookie on the user’s computer.  The cookie is used to track user activities 
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including determining whether the user purchased a product, signed up for a newsletter, called a 

business, or downloaded an app.  As shown below, Defendant groups the activities that Conversion 

Tracking records into at least four categories: Website actions, Phone calls, App installs and in-

app actions, and offline activity.   

 

Source: https://support.google.com/adwords/answer/1722022?hl=en&ref_topic=3119146  

12. Upon information and belief, in addition to the direct interactivity with users 

through advertising, User-ID tracking, and Conversion Tracking described above, Defendant 

further records and saves a multitude of data and information from its direct and indirect 

interactions with users in the Eastern District of Texas, including recording and saving every voice 
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search, recording and saving every text search, recording and tracking all location data. Defendant 

further collects information that allows “fingerprinting” of users, including those who disable 

cookies, by aggregating data about user’s device information, internet provider information, 

location information, unique application numbers, search histories, search patterns, ads clicked on, 

images viewed, videos watched, searching the content of user’s Gmail accounts, and more as 

described in Defendant’s terms of service and privacy policies.1   

 

Source: https://www.google.com/policies/terms/  

 

Source: https://www.google.com/policies/terms/ 

                                                             
1 See https://www.google.com/policies/terms/ ; https://www.google.com/policies/privacy/ ; see also 

https://www.usnews.com/opinion/articles/2013/05/10/15-ways-google-monitors-you; 

https://www.lifewire.com/stop-google-from-tracking-your-searches-4123866   
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Source: https://www.google.com/policies/privacy/ 

 

Source: https://www.google.com/policies/privacy/ 

13. Upon information and belief, Defendant sells products directly to individuals in 
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the Eastern District of Texas, including its Pixel phone, Google Home, Google Wifi, Daydream 

View glasses, Chromecast Ultra streaming device, Chromecast streaming device, tablets, 

Chromebooks, Android Wear watches, and accessories.   

      

      

 

Source:  https://store.google.com/  
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Source:  https://store.google.com/product/pixel_c  

 

Source:  https://store.google.com/config/lg_watch_style  

14. In the sale of the products in the preceding paragraph, Defendant is believed to 

charge local sales tax to residents in the Eatern District of Texas, as shown below. 
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Source: Product testing 

15. Upon information and belief, Defendant knowingly introduced each and every 

product and service as part of its regular and established business into the Eastern District of Texas 

through its highly interactive websites and other hardware and software products, including the 

accused instrumentalities.  Each of Defendant’s products or services and actions described in this 

Original Complaint shows Defendant intended and continues to intend for residents of the Eastern 

District of Texas to use and interact directly with these products, services, and highly interactive 

websites.   

16. Upon information and belief, since 2007, Defendant has employed “hundreds” of 

employees in Texas, including in Austin, Texas.2   

17. Upon information and belief, Defendant has at least one current office located in 

                                                             
2 According to Gerardo Interiano, Google's public affairs and government relations manager, in a statement.  See 

http://www.statesman.com/business/google-lease-200-000-square-feet-new-downtown-austin-

tower/SANZSa3du8QQ4k8ytOC2rJ/  
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Austin, on North MoPac Expressway,3 and upon information and belief, Defendant has additional 

office locations at University Park and Austin’s Children Museum.4   

18. Upon information and belief, Defendant has leased over 200,000 square feet of 

office space in Austin, Texas, at 500 West 2nd Street.5   

19. Upon information and belief, Defendant has, as of May 2017, multiple job 

openings in Austin and Dallas, Texas,6 including positions such as: 

• Software Engineer, Android Applications 

• Software Engineer, Android 

• Google Fiber Program Manager, Last Mile Operations 

• Field Sales Representative, Google Cloud 

• Sales Engineer, Google Cloud 

• Operations Engineer, Technical Infrastructure, Dallas, TX 

20. Upon information and belief, Defendant has at least nine (9) active taxable entities 

in Texas, including:   

• GOOGLE COMPARE AUTO INSURANCE SERVICES INC. 

• GOOGLE COMPARE CREDIT CARDS INC. 

• GOOGLE COMPARE MORTGAGES INC. 

                                                             
3 See https://www.google.com/intl/en/about/locations/?region=north-america  
4 See http://www.statesman.com/business/google-lease-200-000-square-feet-new-downtown-austin-

tower/SANZSa3du8QQ4k8ytOC2rJ/  
5 See http://www.statesman.com/business/google-lease-200-000-square-feet-new-downtown-austin-

tower/SANZSa3du8QQ4k8ytOC2rJ/  
6 https://careers.google.com/jobs#t=sq&q=j&li=20&l=false&jl=30.267153%3A-

97.74306079999997%3AAustin%2C+TX%2C+USA%3AUS%3A%3A20.13709231046343%3ALOCALITY&jld=

20&yes&jcoid=7c8c6665-81cf-4e11-8fc9-ec1d6a69120c&jcoid=e43afd0d-d215-45db-a154-5386c9036525& ; 
https://careers.google.com/jobs?=jo&jid=/google/operations-engineer-dallas-tx-usa 
2526670956#!t=jo&jid=/google/operations-engineer-dallas-tx-usa-2526670956& 
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• GOOGLE FIBER INC. 

• GOOGLE FIBER NORTH AMERICA INC. 

• GOOGLE FIBER TEXAS, LLC 

• GOOGLE INC. 

• GOOGLE NORTH AMERICA INC. 

• GOOGLE PAYMENT CORP. 

21. Upon information and belief, Defendant has provided, currently provides, and is 

currently offering to provide its Google Fiber services to the residents of Austin, Texas.7  And 

upon information and belief, “[Google] Fiber is coming” to San Antonio, Texas.8   And upon 

information and belief, Defendant is “exploring bringing [Google] Fiber to Dallas.”.”9    

22. Upon information and belief, Defendant has invested $200,000,000 in the 

Spinning Spur wind farm project in Oldham County, Texas.10    

23. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides Software-as-a-Service 

applications, including email and server space, to Texas public universities. Non-limiting 

examples of such universities are Texas A&M University (which has facilities in the Eastern 

District of Texas) and Texas A&M Commerce (located in the Eastern District of Texas), as shown 

below.   

                                                             
7 See https://fiber.google.com/cities/austin/  
8 See https://fiber.google.com/cities/sanantonio/  
9 See https://fiber.google.com/cities/dallas/  
10 See https://www.chooseenergy.com/blog/energy-news/google-invests-200m-in-west-texas-wind-farm/  
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Source: http://google.tamu.edu/ 

 

Source:  http://mailman.tamuc.edu/pipermail/students/2012-May/004325.html 

24. Upon information and belief, Defendant has massively scanned books from Texas 

public universities.   
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Source: https://www.lib.utexas.edu/google/faqs.html 

25. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides the State of Texas with aerial 

imagery.11 

26. Upon information and belief, Defendant acquired Waze in 2013,12 and 

Defendant’s Waze traffic app partners with cities and business in Texas, non-limiting examples 

include the Waze partnership with the City of Forth Worth to provide constant traffic data to the 

city.13  Another non-limiting example includes the Waze partnership with the Genesis Group in 

Tyler, to decrease emergency response times.14 

27. Upon information and belief, Defendant tracks the location of individuals in the 

Eastern District of Texas via Google accounts and Android devices.15  

28. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides telephone services to 

individuals in the Eastern District of Texas through Google Voice and Google Hangouts.  Further, 

when signing up for such telephone services, a user can obtain a number local to the Eastern 

District of Texas.16  

                                                             
11 See http://www.bisconsultants.com/affordable-imagery-for-texas-government-entities-from-google/  
12 See https://techcrunch.com/2013/06/11/its-official-google-buys-waze-giving-a-social-data-boost-to-its-location-

and-mapping-business/  
13 See http://dfw.cbslocal.com/2016/12/14/forth-worth-partners-with-waze-traffic-app/  
14 See https://genesispulse.com/2015/10/06/the-genesis-group-joins-waze-connected-citizens-program/  
15 See https://support.google.com/accounts/answer/3467281?hl=en; 

https://support.google.com/accounts/answer/3118687?hl=en  
16 See http://www.wikihow.com/Get-a-Google-Voice-Phone-Number  
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Source: Product testing at https://voice.google.com/signup  

29. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides on-demand video rental 

services to residents of the Eastern District of Texas through its Google Play Movies services.17  

30. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides services to business and schools 

in the Eastern District of Texas, including email services, word processing software, electronic 

file storage services, and video conferencing services.  Defendant brands such services as “G 

Suite” services. Non-limiting examples of such business and schools include the Frisco 

Independent School District, as shown below.18 

                                                             
17 See https://support.google.com/googleplay/answer/2851683  
18 See http://schools.friscoisd.org/ms/vandeventer/site/resources/accessing-google-applications 
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Source: Frisco Independent School District Website. See fn. 20.  

31. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides advertising services to 

businesses in the Eastern District of Texas, including soliciting reviews of patrons that have visited 

a business in the Eastern District of Texas, as shown below.  

 

Source: Product testing 

32. Upon information and belief, Defendant monitors and reports traffic conditions in 
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the Eastern District of Texas.  For example, traffic conditions between a McDonald’s and the 

Federal Courthouse in Marshall, as shown below. 

 

Source: Product testing 

33. Upon information and belief, Defendant has operated and is currently operating 

its Project Fi business and services in the Eastern District of Texas.  Defendant’s Project Fi website 

advertises full coverage in the Eastern District of Texas, as shown below.19 

                                                             
19 See https://fi.google.com/coverage  

Case 2:17-cv-00465   Document 1   Filed 06/01/17   Page 23 of 48 PageID #:  23



24 

 

 

 

Source: Product testing of Google Project Fi Coverage Map see fn 21. 

34. Upon information and belief, to provide its Project Fi business and services, 

Defendant leases structures and equipment, including cellular towers, here in the Eastern District 

of Texas.20   

35. Upon information and belief, Defendant charges residents in the Eastern District 

of Texas local city sales tax for using Defendants’ Project Fi business and services. 

36. Upon information and belief, Defendant has operated and is currently operating 

its Google Maps Street View business and services in the Eastern District of Texas.  For example, 

the image below shows the Google Maps Street View of the Eastern District of Texas courthouse 

in Marshall.   

                                                             
20 See https://www.bostonglobe.com/business/2015/04/22/google-unveils-project-mobile-phone-

service/eafeSW0bzAFLW8x3gSUprL/story.html; https://fi.google.com/about/faq/#network-and-coverage-2   
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Source: Google Maps Street View21 

Furthermore, in the lower right-hand corner of the Google Street View above, the image is 

credited to Defendant and states that it was captured in June, 2016.  

 

37. Upon information and belief, Defendant operates a Street View car in and around 

the Eastern District of Texas to provide the Google Maps Street View service.22  Upon information 

and belief, to operate Street View, Defendant has captured and continues to capture images of 

almost every stretch of every road in the Eastern District of Texas.  This requires Defendant to 

                                                             
21 See https://www.google.com/maps/@32.5447534,-

94.3670371,3a,75y,170.99h,76.06t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1smECZXlUFylR2yu5E-6wj2g!2e0!7i13312!8i6656  
22 See https://www.google.com/streetview/understand/  
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periodically traverse almost every stretch of road in the Eastern District of Texas.23   

38. In addition to the above Google Street View image, upon information and belief, 

Defendant has operated and continues to operate a fleet of Google Street View vehicles in the 

Eastern District of Texas, including in the counties of Houston, Trinity, Polk, Angelina, Anderson, 

VanZandt, Denton, and Collin, as shown below.24   

 

Source: Google Street View website. See fn. 25. 

39. Upon information and belief, Defendant has not only used cars to image streets in 

the Eastern District of Texas, but has also used modified backpacks where Defendant’s agents or 

                                                             
23 See https://www.google.com/streetview/understand/#intro  
24 See https://www.google.com/streetview/understand/#intro  
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employees walked around while images were obtained.  Below is a non-limiting example of 

Defendant’s imaging of Toyota Stadium in the Eastern District of Texas where each blue line 

represents a location to view a 360-degree image – including on the field itself.   

 

Source:  product testing at maps.google.com  
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Source:  product testing at maps.google.com  

 

40. Upon information and belief, Defendant has operated and currently operates its 

Google Express business and services in the Eastern District of Texas.  The image below shows 

the Google Express website showing that its business and services are available in the Eastern 

District of Texas.  
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Source: https://www.google.com/express/  

41. Upon information and belief, Defendant provides its Google Express business and 

services to the residents of the Eastern District of Texas by advertising and inviting the residents 

of the Eastern District of Texas to shop on its Google Express website, then Defendant arranges 

for a delivery company to bring the goods and products purchased through the Google Express 

website to the residents of the Eastern District of Texas.25    

42. Upon information and belief, Defendant previously leased office space in the 

Eastern District of Texas for about 50 people through it Frisco, TX office.26   

43. Upon information and belief, Google acquired Plano, TX-based QuickOffice.27  

QuickOffice was located in the Eastern District of Texas when it was acquired.  

44. Upon information and belief, Google has “Local Guides” in the Eastern District 

of Texas.  

                                                             
25 See https://support.google.com/express/answer/4561693?hl=en  
26 See http://www.nodalbits.com/bits/new-google-offices-open-in-frisco-north-dallas-area/  
27 See https://www.dallasnews.com/business/business/2012/06/06/google-buys-plano-based-quickoffice  
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Source: https://www.google.com/local/guides/benefits/  

 

45. Upon information and belief, such Local Guides obtain benefits such as obtaining 

the ability to “test new products before public release”28 and obtaining free cloud storage space in 

Defendants’ cloud.29    

46. Upon information and belief, such Local Guides supply pictures, reviews, and 

information to obtain such benefits.  Below is an example of a picture from a local guide for the 

airport in Marshall, TX obtained from Defendant’s online map of Marshall, TX.   

 

                                                             
28 https://www.google.com/local/guides/benefits/index.html.   
29 http://www.androidpolice.com/2016/07/07/google-maps-local-guides-cuts-level-4-free-drive-storage-

1tb-100gb/  
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Source: product testing at maps.google.com, searching Marshall, TX.  

 

 
 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 

47. Uniloc incorporates by reference the above paragraphs. 

48. Uniloc brings this action for patent infringement under the patent laws of the 

United States, 35 U.S.C. § 271 et seq. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1338(a) and 1367. 

49. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b). Upon 

Case 2:17-cv-00465   Document 1   Filed 06/01/17   Page 31 of 48 PageID #:  31



32 

 

 

information and belief, Defendant is deemed to reside in this judicial district, has committed acts 

of infringement in this judicial district, has a regular and established places of business in Texas 

and in this judicial district, and/or has purposely transacted business involving the accused 

products in this judicial district, including sales to one or more customers in Texas. 

50. Defendant is subject to this Court’s jurisdiction pursuant to due process and/or the 

Texas Long Arm Statute due at least to its substantial business in this State and judicial district, 

including: (A) at least part of its past infringing activities, (B) regularly doing or soliciting business 

in Texas and/or (C) engaging in persistent conduct and/or deriving substantial revenue from goods 

and services provided to customers in Texas. 

COUNT I 

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,995,433) 

51. Uniloc incorporates by reference the above paragraphs. 

52. Uniloc Luxembourg is the owner, by assignment, of U.S. Patent No. 8,995,433 

(“the ‘433 Patent”), entitled SYSTEM AND METHOD FOR INSTANT VOIP MESSAGING by 

inventor Michael J. Rojas that issued on March 31, 2015. A true and correct copy of the ‘433 

Patent is attached as Exhibit A hereto. 

53. Uniloc USA is the exclusive licensee of the ‘433 Patent with ownership of all 

substantial rights therein, including the right to grant sublicenses, to exclude others, and to enforce, 

sue and recover past damages for the infringement thereof. 

54. Defendant has marketed and currently markets a voice and mobile messaging 

application (or “app”) under the name “Hangouts,” which can be downloaded to a mobile device 

through sites such as Google Play and the Apple App Store. The Hangouts app is serviced by a 

Defendant system that facilitates its operation. Such a system includes one or more servers. 

55. Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, certain 
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aspects of a representative sample of Defendants’ Hangouts app and associated system works. 

56. Google Hangouts provides an Instant Video Messaging feature. The user can 

select a contact and then can click on the video camera icon to record a video message (along with 

audio) and send it. Once the video message is uploaded and is sent, it is shown as a part of the 

chat. 

  
Source: https://www.engadget.com/2016/07/13/google-android-hangouts-video-messaging/ 
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Source: http://www.androidauthority.com/hangouts-11-update-video-702851/ 

 

57. Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how certain 

aspects of a representative sample of Defendant’s Hangouts app and associated system work: 

 
Source: http://www.androidauthority.com/hangouts-11-update-video-702851/ 

 

 
Source:  http://www.theverge.com/2016/9/21/12994362/allo-privacy-message-logs-google  
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Source: https://9to5google.com/2016/07/12/hangouts-for-android-v11-finally-adds-video-

messaging-support/ 

 

58. Once the other user (recipient) has received the video message, it is shown as a 

part of the chat. The recipient can click on it and choose any video playing app to play it. 

 
Source: http://www.androidauthority.com/hangouts-11-update-video-702851/  

 

59. Google Hangouts can be installed on desktop, Android and iOS devices. The user 

can select the name of the contact to whom the video message (along with audio) is to be sent. 
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Source: http://www.startlr.com/heres-how-to-send-videos-through-google-hangouts/ 

 

60. The user can then click on the video camera icon and record the message. 

 
Source: http://www.startlr.com/heres-how-to-send-videos-through-google-hangouts/ 
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Source: http://www.startlr.com/heres-how-to-send-videos-through-google-hangouts/ 

 

 
Source: http://www.startlr.com/heres-how-to-send-videos-through-google-hangouts/ 

61. The following citation shows a sample list of locations where Google’s servers 
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operate, to keep their products including Hangouts running 24x7. 

 
Source: https://www.google.com/about/datacenters/inside/locations/index.html  

 

62. Once the recipient has received the video message, it is shown in the chat. 

Recipients can view the unread messages. Such messages are in bold as shown in the below 

citations. Upon information and belief, the hangout messages are stored on a server, and can be 

read at a later point of time (when the recipient becomes available). 

 
Source: http://www.droid-life.com/2015/08/10/hangouts-4-0-for-android-rolls-out-today/ 
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Source: http://mashable.com/2014/07/11/google-hangouts-changes/ 

 

 
Source: https://support.google.com/hangouts/answer/3115403?hl=en 

 

 
Source:  https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.google.android.talk 

 

63. Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how certain 

aspects of a representative sample of Defendant’s Hangout  app and associated system work: 
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Source:  http://www.androidpolice.com/2017/01/26/hangouts-v16-reorganizes-its-contact-list-

and-search-results-apk-download/  

 
Source:  https://play.Hangouts.com/store/apps/details?id=com.Hangouts.android.apps.messaging 
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64. Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how certain 

aspects of a representative sample of Defendant’s Hangouts app and associated system work: 

  

Source:  

https://support.google.com/hangouts/answer/3111918?co=GENIE.Platform%3DDesktop&hl=en      

 

 
Source:  http://www.androidpolice.com/2014/05/12/web-version-hangouts-shows-green-dot-

friends-online-makes-avatars-round-things/   
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https://support.google.com/hangouts/answer/3111994?hl=en  

 

65. Defendant has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe one or more 

claims of the ‘433 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in Texas, including at least Claim 

1 literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, by or through making, using, importing, 

offering for sale and/or selling one or more versions of the Hangouts app and associated system 

during the pendency of the ‘433 Patent which software and associated  servers perform instant 

voice messaging over Wi-Fi and the Internet between persons using cellphones and/or other 

devices capable of instant voice messaging; wherein a list of one or more potential recipients is 

displayed on the device, the instant messages are temporarily stored using a unique identifier, and 

a file manager stores, retrieves and/or deletes the messages in response to the users request. 

66. In addition, should the Hangouts app and associated system be found to not 

literally infringe the asserted claims of the ‘433 Patent, the accused Hangouts app and associated 

system would nevertheless infringe the asserted claims of the ‘433 Patent. More specifically, the 

accused Hangouts app and associated system performs substantially the same function (instant 

voice messaging), in substantially the same way (identifying potentially available recipients, 

storing messages using unique identifiers and a file manager for storing, retrieving, and/or deleting 

the messages), to yield substantially the same result (delivering voice messages to available 
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intended recipients and wherein the messages may be stored, retrieved, and/or deleted). Defendant 

would thus be liable for direct infringement under the doctrine of equivalents.  

67. Defendant has indirectly infringed and continue to indirectly infringe at least 

Claim 1 of the ‘433 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States by, among 

other things, actively inducing the using, offering for sale, selling, or importing the Hangouts app 

and associated system. Defendant’s customers who obtain the Hangouts app and associated system 

and operate such app in accordance with Defendant’s instructions directly infringe one or more of 

the foregoing claims of the ‘433 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. Defendant instructs its 

customers directly and indirectly through training videos, demonstrations, brochures, installation 

and/or user guides, such as those located at the following:  

https://support.google.com/hangouts 

https://itunes.apple.com/us/app  

https://play.google.com/store  

www.youtube.com 

Defendant is thereby liable for infringement of the ‘433 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).  

68. Defendant has indirectly infringed and continue to indirectly infringe at least 

Claim 1of the ‘433  Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States by, among 

other things, contributing to the direct infringement by others including, without limitation 

customers using the Hangouts app and associated system, by making, offering to sell, selling 

and/or importing into the United States, a component of a patented machine, manufacture or 

combination, or an apparatus for use in practicing a patented process, constituting a material part 

of the invention, knowing the same to be especially made or especially adapted for use in 

infringing the ‘433 Patent and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for 
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substantial non-infringing use.  

69. For example, the Hangouts app and associated system is a component of a 

patented machine, manufacture, or combination, or an apparatus for use in practicing a patent 

process. Furthermore, the Hangouts app and associated system is a material part of the claimed 

inventions and upon information and belief is not a staple article or commodity of commerce 

suitable for substantial noninfringing use. Defendant is therefore, liable for infringement under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(c).  

70. Defendant will have been on notice of the ‘433 Patent since, at the latest, the 

service of this complaint upon them. By the time of trial, Defendant will have known and intended 

(since receiving such notice) that its continued actions would actively induce, and contribute to, 

the infringement of one or more of Claim 1of the ‘433 Patent.  

71. Defendant may have infringed the ‘433 Patent through other software utilizing the 

same or reasonably similar functionality, including other versions of the Hangouts app and 

associated system. Uniloc reserves the right to discover and pursue all such additional infringing 

software/devices. 

COUNT II 

(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,535,890) 

72. Uniloc incorporates by reference the above paragraphs. 

73. Uniloc Luxembourg is the owner, by assignment, of U.S. Patent No. 7,535,890 

(“the ‘890 Patent”), entitled SYSTEM AND METHOD FOR INSTANT VOIP MESSAGING by 

inventor Michael J. Rojas that issued on May 19, 2009. A true and correct copy of the ‘890 Patent 

is attached as Exhibit B hereto. 

74. Uniloc USA is the exclusive licensee of the ‘890 Patent with ownership of all 

substantial rights therein, including the right to grant sublicenses, to exclude others, and to enforce, 
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sue and recover past damages for the infringement thereof. 

75. Defendant has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe one or more 

claims of the ‘890 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in Texas, including at least Claim 

1literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, by or through making, using, importing, 

offering for sale and/or selling one or more versions of the Hangouts app and associated system 

during the pendency of the ‘890 Patent which software and associated servers perform instant 

voice messaging over Wi-Fi and the Internet between persons using cellphones and/or other 

devices capable of instant voice messaging; wherein the instant messages are temporarily stored 

if an intended message recipient is unavailable and thereafter delivered once the intended recipient 

becomes available. 

76. In addition, should the Hangouts app and associated system be found to not 

literally infringe the asserted claims of the ‘890 Patent, the accused Hangouts app and associated 

system would nevertheless infringe the asserted claims of the ‘890 Patent. More specifically, the 

accused Hangouts app and associated system performs substantially the same function (instant 

voice messaging), in substantially the same way (via a client/server environment), to yield 

substantially the same result (delivering voice messages to available intended recipients). 

Defendant would thus be liable for direct infringement under the doctrine of equivalents. 

77. Defendant has indirectly infringed and continue to indirectly infringe at least 

Claim 1 of the ‘890 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States by, among 

other things, actively inducing the using, offering for sale, selling, or importing the Hangouts app 

and associated system. Defendant’s customers who obtain the Hangouts app and associated system 

and operate such app in accordance with Defendant’s instructions directly infringe one or more of 

the foregoing claims of the ‘890 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. Defendant instructs its 
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customers directly and indirectly through training videos, demonstrations, brochures, installation 

and/or user guides, such as those located at the following:  

https://support.google.com/hangouts 

https://itunes.apple.com/us/app  

https://play.google.com/store  

www.youtube.com 

Defendant is thereby liable for infringement of the ‘890 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).  

78. Defendant has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe at least 

Claim 1of the ‘890 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States by, among 

other things, contributing to the direct infringement by others including, without limitation 

customers using the Hangouts app and associated system, by making, offering to sell, selling 

and/or importing into the United States, a component of a patented machine, manufacture or 

combination, or an apparatus for use in practicing a patented process, constituting a material part 

of the invention, knowing the same to be especially made or especially adapted for use in 

infringing the ‘890 Patent and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for 

substantial non-infringing use.  

79. For example, the Hangouts app and associated system is a component of a 

patented machine, manufacture, or combination, or an apparatus for use in practicing a patent 

process. Furthermore, the Hangouts app and associated system is a material part of the claimed 

inventions and upon information and belief is not a staple article or commodity of commerce 

suitable for substantial noninfringing use. Defendant is therefore, liable for infringement under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(c).  

80. Defendant will have been on notice of the ‘890 Patent since, at the latest, the 
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service of this complaint upon Defendant. By the time of trial, Defendant will have known and 

intended (since receiving such notice) that its continued actions would actively induce, and 

contribute to, the infringement of one or more of Claim 1of the ‘890 Patent.  

81. Defendant may have infringed the ‘890 Patent through other software utilizing the 

same or reasonably similar functionality, including other versions of its Hangouts app and 

associated system. Uniloc reserves the right to discover and pursue all such additional infringing 

software/devices. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 

Uniloc requests that the Court enter judgment against Defendant as follows: 

 

(A) that Defendant has infringed the ‘433 Patent and the ‘890 Patent; 

(B) awarding Uniloc its damages suffered as a result of Defendant’s infringement of 

the ‘433 Patent and the ‘890 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

(C) enjoining each Defendant, its officers, directors, agents, servants, affiliates, 

employees, divisions, branches, subsidiaries and parents, and all others acting in concert or 

privity with it from infringing the ‘433 Patent and the ‘890 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283; 

(D) awarding Uniloc its costs, attorneys’ fees, expenses, and interest; and 

 

(E) granting Uniloc such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and 

 

proper. 

 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

 

Uniloc hereby demands trial by jury on all issues so triable pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 38. 
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